
  
 

Jeff Hughes 
Head of Democratic and Legal 

Support Services 
 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING : LICENSING COMMITTEE 

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 

DATE : THURSDAY 26 MARCH 2015 

TIME : 4.30 PM 
 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 
 
Councillor R Beeching (Chairman). 
Councillors W Ashley, P Ballam, E Bedford, E Buckmaster, 
Mrs R Cheswright, K Crofton, G Cutting, Mrs D Hone, J Jones, M McMullen 
(Vice-Chairman), P Ruffles, J Taylor, A Warman and B Wrangles. 
 
Substitutes: 
 

 
(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting). 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
Peter Mannings 
01279 502174 

peter.mannings@eastherts.gov.uk  

 

Conservative Group: Councillors D Andrews and K Warnell. 
Liberal Democrat Group:  
Independent Group: Councillor M Newman. 

Public Document Pack



 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
1. A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, 

sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the 
Authority, with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to 
be considered or being considered at a meeting: 

 

• must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

• must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting; 

 

• must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or 
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act 
2011; 

 

• if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a 
pending notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days; 

 

• must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
2. A DPI is an interest of a Member or their partner (which means 

spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were 
civil partners) within the descriptions as defined in the Localism Act 
2011. 

 
3. The Authority may grant a Member dispensation, but only in limited 

circumstances, to enable him/her to participate and vote on a matter 
in which they have a DPI. 

 
4. It is a criminal offence to: 
 

• fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it 
is not on the register; 

• fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, within 28 days, of a DPI that 
is not on the register that a Member disclosed to a meeting; 

• participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a 
Member has a DPI; 

• knowingly or recklessly provide information that is false or 
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in 
disclosing such interest to a meeting. 



 

(Note: The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a 
fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale and 
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years.)  

              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings 
 
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its 
Committees using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you 
think are suitable, which may include social media of any kind, 
such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.  However, oral 
reporting or commentary is prohibited.  If you have any 
questions about this please contact Democratic Services 
(members of the press should contact the Press Office).  
Please note that the Chairman of the meeting has the 
discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons, 
including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the 
business being conducted.  Anyone filming a meeting should 
focus only on those actively participating and be sensitive to 
the rights of minors, vulnerable adults and those members of 
the public who have not consented to being filmed. 



 

AGENDA: 
 

1. Apologies  
 

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

2. Chairman's Announcements  
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

 To receive any Member(s)’ declaration(s) of interest.  
 

4. Minutes – 20 November 2014  
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
Thursday 20 November 2014 (Previously circulated as part of the 
Council Minute book for 17 December 2014).  
 

5. Licensing Sub-Committee – 23 January and 12 February 2015 
(Pages 7 – 14). 
 

 To receive the Minutes of meetings of the Licensing Sub–Committee 
held on: 
 
23 January 2015 
12 February 2015  
 

6. Draft Revised Statement of Licensing Policy (Pages 15 – 44). 
 

7. Consideration of Public Fundraising Associations (PFRA) Response to 
Suggested Amendments to Draft Site Management Agreement 
(Pages 45 – 60). 

 

8. Licensing Activity – Quarter 4 of 2014 (Pages 61 – 68). 
 

9. Attendance at Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 69 – 74). 
 
 
 



 

10. Urgent Business  
 

 To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of 
the meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not 
likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information.  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

  MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, 
HERTFORD ON FRIDAY 23 JANUARY 
2015, AT 2.00 PM 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor Jeff Jones (Chairman). 
  Councillors M McMullen and P Ruffles. 
   
 ALSO PRESENT:  

 
  Councillors P Ballam and R Beeching. 
   
 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Robin Clark - Licensing 

Enforcement and 
Community Safety 
Manager 

  Myles Hancock - Licensing Officer 
  Peter Mannings - Democratic 

Services Officer 
  George Robertson - Legal Services 

Manager 
 
18   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

 
 

 It was proposed by Councillor P Ruffles and seconded by 
Councillor M McMullen that Councillor J Jones be 
appointed Chairman of the Licensing Sub–Committee for 
the meeting. 
 

RESOLVED – that Councillor J Jones be 
appointed Chairman of the Licensing Sub–
Committee for the meeting. 

 

 

19   MINUTES – 3 OCTOBER AND 14 OCTOBER 2014  
 

 

 RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meetings 
held on 3 and 14 October 2014 be confirmed as 
correct records and signed by the Chairman. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

 
20   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
 

 The Sub–Committee passed a resolution pursuant to 
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended, to exclude the press and public during 
consideration of the business referred to in Minute 21 on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 

 

21   APPLICATION FOR A PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER’S LICENCE – 
APPLICANT WITH UNSPENT CONVICTIONS – 
APPLICATION NUMBER 026702   
 

 

 The Chairman outlined the procedure to be followed.  All 
those present were introduced.  The applicant agreed that 
Councillors P Ballam, R Beeching and a Licensing Officer 
in training could remain in the room as observers. 
 
The Licensing Enforcement and Community Safety 
Manager apologised that paragraph 2.1 of the report 
submitted, incorrectly stated that the application had a 
conviction when this should have read a police caution.  
Members were advised that the application was for a 
private hire driver’s licence and, if approved, the applicant 
could apply for a dual driver’s licence on completion of the 
knowledge test. 
 
The Sub–Committee was advised of the applicant’s 
background leading to him becoming a UK passport 
holder in 2009.  The Licensing Enforcement and 
Community Safety Manager summarised the nature of the 
police caution received by the applicant in 2010. 
 
The applicant provided detailed information regarding the 
circumstances that led to the police caution.  The 
applicant advised that he was of good character and his 
friend confirmed this.  The friend also advised the Sub–
Committee that the applicant respected the law and 
people.   

 

Page 8



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

 
The friend advised that the applicant’s wife and child were 
in Afghanistan and the criteria to be demonstrated before 
he would be permitted to bring his family to the UK.  The 
applicant explained that he had lost his father, a brother 
and sister in a previous conflict between Afghanistan and 
Russia. 
 
Councillor P Ruffles asked the applicant why the 
completed application form had not made reference to the 
police caution.  The applicant confirmed that his English 
was poor and he had not understood the form and his 
friend had not read the form correctly. 
 
In response to a query from Councillor J Jones regarding 
the applicant’s previous employment, the applicant 
confirmed that he had worked as a pizza delivery driver in 
London and was currently employed in this capacity in 
Bishop’s Stortford. 
 
In reply to a question from Councillor M McMullen, the 
applicant confirmed that he had received a job offer from 
Associated Taxis in Bishop’s Stortford.  The Licensing 
Enforcement and Community Safety Manager confirmed 
that Associated Taxis had written to Officers confirming 
that a full time job offer had been made to the applicant. 
 
At the conclusion of the representations, the Sub–
Committee withdrew with the Legal Services Manager 
and the Democratic Services Officer to consider the 
evidence. 
 
Following this they returned, and the Chairman 
announced that the Sub–Committee had listened to all 
the comments made and had decided to approve the 
application for a private hire driver’s licence. 
 
The applicant was reminded that he was being trusted to 
be a ‘fit and proper’ person in his dealings with the public 
and he needed to be more careful and understand the 
importance of completing application forms in future. 

Page 9



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

 
RESOLVED – that for the reasons now detailed, 
the application for a private hire driver’s licence be 
approved. 

 
The meeting closed at 2.40 pm 
 

 
Chairman ............................................................ 
 
Date  ............................................................ 
 

 

Page 10



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

  MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, 
HERTFORD ON THURSDAY 12 
FEBRUARY 2015, AT 2.00 PM 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor Eric Buckmaster (Chairman). 
  Councillors E Bedford and R Beeching. 
   
 ALSO PRESENT:  

 
  Councillors J Jones and P Moore. 
   
 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Lorraine Blackburn - Democratic 

Services Officer 
  Robin Clark - Licensing 

Enforcement and 
Community Safety 
Manager 

  Oliver Rawlings - Senior Specialist 
Licensing Officer 

  George Robertson - Legal Services 
Manager 

  Tina Wilson - Business Support 
Manager 

 
22   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

 
 

 It was moved by Councillor R Beeching and seconded by 
Councillor E Bedford that Councillor E Buckmaster be 
appointed Chairman for the Licensing Sub-Committee 
meeting. 
 

RESOLVED – that Councillor E Buckmaster be 
appointed Chairman of the Licensing Sub–
Committee for the meeting. 

 
 
 

 

Page 11



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

23   MINUTES – 12 SEPTEMBER 2014  
 

 

 RESOLVED - that the Minutes of the meeting held 
on12 September 2014 be confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

 

 

24   APPLICATIONS BY C AND T GROUP LIMITED FOR A NEW 
PREMISES LICENCE AT 15 MAIDENHEAD STREET, 
HERTFORD SG14 1DW   
 

 

 The Chairman outlined the procedure to be followed.  All 
those present were introduced. 
 
The Senior Specialist Licensing Officer advised the Sub–
Committee of the details of the application and explained 
that the Police had suggested a number of conditions, the 
detail of which was set out in paragraph 2.3 of the report.  
The Senior Specialist Licensing Officer explained that four 
objections to the application had been received, as 
summarised in the report.  He referred to additional 
information from the objectors which had been circulated 
to Members on 9 February 2015.  Members were advised 
to consider whether the applicant’s proposed licensable 
activities would undermine the four licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant referred to the objections and was happy to 
propose a number of amendments to the opening times.  
He advised Members that he proposed to have external 
seating and chairs located to the front of the premises 
between the hours of 8am to 10 pm.  The applicant 
explained the problem associated with the soundproofing 
and assured Members that this had now been resolved 
with the landlord.  The applicant advised that he had 
provided 50% of the funding to resolve this problem. 
 
Councillor R Beeching referred to each of the objectors’ 
representations in relation to litter picks, the take-away 
service, customers’ parking and fire exits.  The applicant 
provided an explanation of how each area of concern.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, the Senior Specialist 

 

Page 12



LS LS 
 
 

 
 

Licensing Officer clarified the opening times for the supply 
of alcohol and food for consumption on and off the 
premises. 
 
The Chairman reminded the applicant that permission for 
the external seating arrangements was an issue for 
Hertfordshire County Council to determine. 
 
At the conclusion of the representations, the Sub-
Committee withdrew with the Legal Services Manager 
and Democratic Services Officer to consider the 
evidence. 
 
Following this they returned, the Chairman stated that 
Members had carefully considered the comments put 
forward and had agreed to revised opening times as 
amended by the applicant and conditions suggested by 
the Police, with the exception of a condition regarding 
“outside tables and chairs” which was a matter for 
Hertfordshire County Council. 
 

RESOLVED – that the application for a new 
premises licence, as amended, be approved as 
follows: 
 
Sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the 
premises: 
Monday to Saturday 08:00 – 23:00 
Sunday   08:00 – 22:30 
 
Premises open to the public: 
Monday to Saturday 08:00 – 00:00 
Sunday   08:00 – 22:30 

 
The meeting closed at 2.35 pm 

 
Chairman ............................................................ 
 
Date  ............................................................ 
 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2015  
 
REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 

 DRAFT REVISED STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 

 

• To present to members a draft revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE: that 

 

(A) The report be received. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act requires the Licensing Authority to 

determine its Licensing Policy and publish every 5 years the 
Statement of Licensing Policy that sets out the principles it applies 
in exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 2003.  The 
Statement must be published before the Licensing Authority 
carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.  The Act 
also requires that the Statement of Licensing Policy is kept under 
review, and appropriate revisions are made. 

 
1.2 The current policy was determined in January 2014 for a period of 

5 years and so must be re-determined at Full Council by 31 
January 2019 at the latest.  

 
1.3 However, the section 182 guidance issued by the Secretary of 

State requires that the policy is kept under review and revisions 
made as appropriate. 

 
1.4 Since publication of the current Statement of Licensing Policy, 

there has been much national discussion regarding the links 
between alcohol misuses and delivering improved public health.  

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



 
  

1.5 At the meeting of the full Licensing Committee on 17 July 2014 it 
was recommended that officers be tasked with reviewing the 
statement of policy in light of the public health concerns. 

 
1.6 Paragraph 13.10 of the revised section 182 guidance states that 

the Licensing Policy may set out the general approach to making 
licensing decisions and the draft policy has been revised to make 
the approach clearer to all stakeholders. 
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 A draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy is presented with 
this report as Essential Reference Paper ‘B’. 

 
2.2 The changes to the Policy are substantial even in the sections 

where the headings from the original policy have been kept. The 
main areas of change are: 
 

• Objectives of Licensing Policy section has been 
amalgamated into the Policy approach section. 

• The Fundamental Principles section has been expanded to 
include factors that will be taken into account when 
representations are received. 

• A section on pre-application considerations has been added 
to aid those seeking to obtain an authorisation under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

• The Licensing hours section has been revised and expanded 
to include definitions of premises, locations of premises and 
the approach to licensing hours where representations are 
received. 

• A section added regarding the licensing of petrol stations and 
the evidence that will be required to determine whether or not 
a premise is primarily a ‘garage’ as defined in the Act. 

• A section regarding creating family friendly town centres has 
been included; this relates to the Fundamental Principles and 
Licensing Hours sections. The areas to be defined as ‘Town 
Centres’ need to be decided upon. 

• Public safety and protection of children from harm sections 
expanded to include a reference to delivering improved public 
health. 

• Sections duplicating the contents of the Licensing Act 2003 
and revised statutory guidance issued by the secretary of 
state have been removed shortening the document by 8 
pages. 

 

Page 16



 
  

2.3 Members are invited to consider the draft revised Statement and 
forward any comments to the Licensing section. 

 
2.4 Following amendments proposed by Members, statutory 

consultation will take place between April and June 2015. 
 
2.5 Feedback on Statutory Consultation will be presented to Licensing 

Committee on 9 July 2015, for consideration, further amendment 
as appropriate, and recommendation of a final version to Full 
Council. 

 
2.6 Full Council will be invited to consider and approve the final draft 

at full council on 29 July 2015, for publication for a five year 
period, expiring on 31 January 2019. 
 

3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’. 

 
Background Papers 
Draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy 2015. 
 
Contact Member: Councillor Malcolm Alexander – Executive Member 

for Community Safety and Environment. 
malcolm.alexander@eastherts.gov.uk  

 
Contact Officer: Brian Simmonds – Head of Community Safety and 

Health Services, Extn: 1498. 
 brian.simmonds@eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Report Author: Oliver Rawlings – Senior Specialist Licensing  

  Officer, Extn: 1629.      
  oliver.rawlings@eastherts.gov.uk 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS: 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly those 
who are vulnerable. 
 

Consultation: Consultation with Direct Debit fundraisers and the 
professional fundraising agencies they use through the 
Public Fundraising Regulatory Association (PFRA) which 
covers 90% of the sector. 

Legal: No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Financial: No issues identified by report author or contact officer  

Human 
Resource: 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Risk 
Management: 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts: 
 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 

 
EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2015 
 
Contents 

1.0 Foreword ........................................................................................................  
 Publication .....................................................................................................  
 Who is affected by this Policy ........................................................................  
 About East Herts ............................................................................................  
 Policy Approach .............................................................................................  
 The Licensing Act 2003 .................................................................................  
 Fundamental Principles 
2.0 Pre-application considerations .......................................................................  
3.0 Cumulative impact .........................................................................................  
4.0 Licensing hours ..............................................................................................  
5.0 Petrol filling stations .......................................................................................  
6.0 Creating Family Friendly town centres ...........................................................  
7.0 Prevention of crime and disorder ...................................................................  
8.0 Public safety ..................................................................................................  
9.0 Prevention of nuisance ..................................................................................  
10.0 Protection of children from harm ....................................................................  
11.0 Inspection of premises ...................................................................................  
12.0 Enforcement policy ........................................................................................  
13.0 Dealing with complaints .................................................................................  
14.0 Reviews .........................................................................................................  
15.0 Appeals ..........................................................................................................  
16.0 Administration, Exercise and Delegations of Functions .................................  
17.0 Monitoring of the licensing function ................................................................  
18.0 Miscellaneous and supplementary .................................................................  
 Promotion of other strategies .........................................................................  
  Planning permission .......................................................................................  
 Early Morning Restriction Orders and Late Night Levy ..................................  
 Contact ..........................................................................................................  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 21



 

1. FOREWORD 

 
This policy supports the East Herts Council’s vision ‘To improve the quality of 
people’s lives and preserve all that is best in East Herts.’  
 
East Herts enjoys a widespread and diverse selection of licensed premises and 
venues. More than 500 premises are currently licensed for either the sale or supply of 
alcohol; the provision of regulated entertainment; and / or the provision of late night 
refreshment. These range from off-licences, shops and supermarkets; restaurants, 
cafes and take-away establishments; to pubs, bars, members clubs, night clubs, 
theatres, cinemas and indoor sports facilities. Together they combine to provide a 
wide-range of leisure and cultural opportunities; support tourism; provide employment; 
and make a significant economic contribution to the local community.  
 
As long as premises management strive to act responsibly; run safe, well managed 
venues and facilities; and work together with the local community, they can make a 
positive contribution toward building community cohesion and cultural development.  
 
Of course, negative impacts can also occur if good management practices are not 
followed. Potential negative impacts may arise in the form of noise, nuisance, 
disturbance and crime and disorder problems. We recognise that the misuse of 
alcohol particularly, while maintaining an important position in our leisure activity, does 
negatively impact upon both public health and the public purse through the demands 
made upon A and E; additional policing; additional street cleaning; and the criminal 
justice system.  
 
Our policy, therefore, seeks to provide a necessary balance between providing a 
platform upon which responsible business operators may contribute towards a thriving 
business and late night economy while ensuring that the quality of life of those who 
live and work in the district is protected and enhanced through the licensing system. 
We believe these aims are achievable if all parties concerned work together. 
 
Publication 
 
This version of the Statement of Licensing Policy was approved by Full Council TBC.  
Together with any published addendum approved by the council, it states the policies 
that will be used to determine licence applications. 
 
Who is affected by this Policy 
 
This document applies to all places selling or providing: 
 

• Alcohol 

• Regulated Entertainment 

• Late Night Refreshment 
 Including: 

• Pubs and night-clubs, 

• Off-licences, 

• Restaurants serving alcohol, 

• Restaurants and take aways open between 11.00pm and 5.00am, 

• Hotels, guest houses 

• Private member’s clubs and social clubs 

Page 22



 
• Theatre and amateur dramatic groups, 

• Cinema operators, 

• Organisers of Temporary Events,  

• Some community events and village halls. 
   
It is also recognised that how the policy is applied can have an effect on: 

 

• The lives of East Herts Residents 

• Visitor to East Herts 

• Businesses not directly involved with the licensed trade 

• The local economy and prosperity of East Herts 
 

About East Herts 
 
East Herts is the largest of the 10 districts in Hertfordshire. It covers 47, 568.68 
hectares, around a third of the county, and offers a blend of rural and town living. The 
benefits of this mixture are greatly appreciated by the 141,076 people who live in the 
district. The majority of the people who live in the district live in one of the five towns. 
Bishop’s Stortford has the largest population at 37,800, followed by Hertford (26,800), 
Ware (18,800), Sawbridgeworth (8,500) and Buntingford (5,400). 

 
Although the district is mainly comprised of farmland, five busy market towns (Bishop’s 
Stortford, Buntingford, Hertford, Sawbridgeworth and Ware) and more than 100 
villages and hamlets are scattered across the area. 

 
East Herts is regarded as an attractive rural location for those moving out from (and 
commuting into) London because of its excellent transport links. 

 
The people of East Herts are predominantly employed and enjoy higher than average 
earnings (£589.90 gross weekly pay for full-time workers compared to £518.10 for the 
whole of the country3). Unemployment is very low (1.3%4). 

 
House prices are among the highest in the country; in 2014 for the period April to June 
the average property price was £338,0005 while the average salary in 2013 was 
£31,548 compared to £31,949 in Hertfordshire.  

 
A fifth of people are under 16 and a fifth of people are over 60. The average age in the 
district is 39.5.  

 
Over 89% of people were born in England, 3% were born in other countries in the 
European Union and 4% in other countries9.  

 
East Herts has a low ethnic minority population of just 4.5%. The largest ethnic 
minority group is Asian/Asian British at 1.9% with Indian being the highest within that 
group. The second largest minority group is mixed/multiple ethnic groups at 1.6%. 
 
Over a third of people are educated to level 4 or higher e.g. Bachelor’s degree (33.5%, 
36,867). However, under a fifth of the population have no qualifications (17.2%, 
18,959) 
 
East Herts is one of the safest places to live in Hertfordshire with low levels of burglary 
and vehicle crime.  The district has a crime rate that is well below average. The 
administration of the Licensing Act and the previous policy contributed, as part of the 

Page 23



 
East Herts Community Safety Partnership, to the reduction of recorded crime and anti-
social behaviour across the district. Recorded crime in East Herts has fallen by 11% 
8,261 in 2012/13 to 7,362 in 2013/14 and anti-social behaviour has reduced by 28% 
3,039 in 2012/13 to 2,175 in 2013/14. 
 
Whilst the people of East Herts generally enjoy very good health the Public Health 
Service Herts warn us that Hospital stays for alcohol related harm affects 1364 people 
per 100,000 of our population. Alcohol specific hospital stays for our under 18 year 
olds is 19.1 per 100,000 of our population. 
 
Public Health Herts  warn that increasing levels of “Risk drinking” and “Higher risk 
drinking” are not only above the Hertfordshire average but also above the England 
average.   
 
Policy approach 
 
The Council will administer the licensing function to promote cultural life in the district 
consistent with the licensing objectives:  

• the prevention of crime and disorder; 

• public safety; 

• the prevention of public nuisance; and 

• the protection of children from harm. 
 
Our vision is to create a safe and family-friendly environment within the District, 
particularly within the town centres.   
 
It is against the background of warnings from Public Health Herts about the impact of 
alcohol abuse upon our populations health that the East Herts Licensing Committee 
has decided to place health concerns at the heart of its decision making where 
appropriate. 
 
Whilst we recognise that each application must be considered on its individual 
merits and must be granted in the absence of any relevant representations, 
policies will be implemented to achieve our overall aims.   
 
The Council hopes that this policy will help create better opportunities for local people 
and visitors to enjoy their leisure time safely without fear of violence, intimidation or 
disorder while on, arriving at or leaving licensed premises.  
 
Protecting local residents and avoiding blight from disturbance and anti-social 
behaviour caused by the conduct of inconsiderate people visiting places of 
entertainment, is central to our Licensing Policy. This focus aims to address concerns 
about the impact of trading hours on behaviour and disturbance at night. 
 
The Council has to balance protecting the amenity of its local population with the 
expectations of commercial occupiers to have an environment that is attractive and 
sustainable for their business. 
 
An effective Licensing Policy, with other initiatives, can help promote improvements 
(increasing the leisure industry provision for the community and encouraging 
regeneration of town centres), as well as reducing the negative impacts (noise, 
nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime and disorder).  
 

Page 24



 
Our aim is to have a lighter touch for the majority of businesses and community 
activities, which enhance peoples’ lives by providing worthwhile opportunities for the 
enjoyment of leisure time without having a negative impact. Premises which cause 
problems within our communities, allow disorder, threaten public safety, cause public 
nuisance, or threaten the wellbeing of children, will be targeted for enforcement action. 
 
This Policy is designed to build upon the work presently carried out by the Council to 
maintain a dynamic, innovative and attractive place to live, work and relax. The 
Council has a number of strategies in place that contain the visions, aims and 
objectives to promote, improve and protect the area. This Licensing Policy has been 
prepared to promote the four licensing objectives, and the Council has had regard to 
the local strategies which have been developed for the district, its residents, 
businesses, workers and visitors. The Council is working to secure the proper 
integration with local crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism, cultural strategies, 
race equality schemes and disability and gender discrimination strategies, by ensuring 
the Licensing Policy is consistent with the aims and objectives of these strategies. 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 
 
The Act has been in operation since 24 November 2005, and is administered by local 
authorities. 
 
The Licensing Authority for the East Hertfordshire District Council (hereafter referred 
to as ‘the Council’) makes this Statement of Licensing Policy in accordance with 
section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003.  It is kept under constant review and an updated 
version has to be published at no more than 5 year intervals.  
 
The Council will have regard to this Policy when carrying out its functions under the 
Licensing Act 2003 and it will be used as a guide in decision making with regard to 
licensing matters.  
 
Licensing regulates licensable activities. Conditions attached to licences will address 
matters on the premises, and near the premises, which are within the control of 
individual licence holders. The direct impact of the activities at the licensed premises 
on members of the public living, working or engaged in everyday activity in the area 
will be considered. 
 
The central purpose of the Licensing Act is to promote the four licensing objectives, 
and the council will use its powers working with the police and other agencies to 
protect residents from disturbance.  
 
The Act also aims to provide the entertainment/leisure industry with freedom and 
flexibility over provision of licensable activities and opening hours.  
 
Every holder of a licence, certificate or permission should accept and be responsible 
for minimising the impact of their activities and anti-social behaviour by their patrons 
within the vicinity of their premises by taking appropriate measures and action 
consistent with that responsibility. 
 
Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance and 
anti-social behaviour caused by people once they are away from the premises, and 
therefore beyond the direct control of the licence holder. Nonetheless, licensing is one 
aspect of such control and is part of a holistic approach. 

Page 25



 
Police powers to deal with any disorder are continually being strengthened and they 
have a key role in the prevention of crime and disorder on licensed premises. The 
Council retains its power as local planning authority to control opening times of all new 
establishments seeking planning permission, where harm would otherwise arise.    
 
The primary responsibility for controlling activities on licensed premises firmly rests on 
the licence holders and managers of such premises. This Council, with support from 
the other enforcement agencies will keep the activities of these licence holders under 
review. This means that all concerned must work closely together in partnership for 
the community of which both businesses and residents form a part. 
 
Nothing in this Policy will prevent any person from applying for a variety of 
permissions under the Act. Every application made to the Council will be considered 
on its own merits. This Policy will be used to inform and assist consistent and 
transparent decisions on licence applications. 

Fundamental Principles 

 
Applicants are expected to write an operating schedule that shows how they will 
promote the licensing objectives.  The operating schedule will be used as a basis for 
licence conditions for the individual premises. 

 
Conditions attached to licences and certificates will: 

 
• be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

• be precise and enforceable; 

• be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

• not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 
placed on the employer by other legislation; 

• be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises 
and events concerned; 

• not be standardised, as it may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated 
that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an 
individual case; 

• not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation; 

• be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for example, whilst 
beer glasses may be available in toughened glass, wine glasses may not);  

• not seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the 
direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the 
behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they 
enter or leave; and 

• be written in a prescriptive format. 

  
Licence holders must ensure that they and their premises comply with any conditions 
attached to a licence while licensable activities are taking place, otherwise they 
commit an offence. 
 
Where we have discretion because relevant representations have been made about 
licensing applications, we may also take into account the following factors to fulfil our 
vision: 
 

Page 26



 
(1) what contribution the application can make to creating a family-friendly town 

centre, specifically in terms of offer to a wide-range of customers; family-
friendly policies and facilities; operating hours; and pricing; 

 
(2) entertainment aimed at over-25 year olds;  
 
(3) links with other activities in the town, to encourage day-time users to stay in 

the evening; 
 
(4) provision of a full food menu and not only alcohol; 
 
(5) the controlled and safe sale of alcohol; 
 
(6) transport/dispersal provision, particularly during periods when public transport 

is unavailable; 
 
(7) style and type of venue.  The licensing authority wants to attract only high-

quality operators who can provide a family-friendly environment, characterised 
by a range of activities and offers that would appeal to families of all 
backgrounds.  A family-friendly environment may (but need not) be 
characterised by: 

 

• a range of alcoholic and soft drinks suitable for all ages; 
 

• a food menu, including healthy options which caters for different tastes 
and needs, available throughout the duration of the premises’ operating 
times;  

 

• facilities suitable for assisting customers with young children, such as 
high-chairs and baby-changing facilities, and facilities for family groups 
such as suitably laid-out seating/table areas; 

 

• a range of activities or entertainment that appeals to a range of age 
groups, whether provided at the same time or at separate times.   

 
(8) involvement in local community events and organisations 
 
(9) commitment to involvement in community safety partnership initiatives.   
 
(10) use of pavement licences for outdoor table areas. 
 
2. PRE-APPLICATION CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Our experience in administering the licensing regime since 2005 shows us that many 
disputes start from poor communication. For example, the Act doesn’t always allow 
applicants to fully explain their proposals, leading residents to misunderstand what is 
being proposed.  In that case, formal representations are made and licensing hearings 
held to simply clarify what is being proposed. 
 
We would strongly encourage applicants to hold pre-application discussions with us, 
other relevant statutory bodies and local residents or businesses before submitting all 
but the most straight-forward applications. These discussions at the earliest possible 

Page 27



 
stage will reduce the risk of a dispute arising and avoid the unnecessary time and 
expense involved in a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing. 
 
Prospective holders of new premises licences, and those seeking variations of existing 
premises licences, are advised to consult with the Council and the various responsible 
authorities at the. 
 
Licensing is about the regulation of licensed premises, qualifying members’ clubs and 
temporary events.  We may only impose conditions on premises licences and club 
premises certificates in one of two circumstances: 
 
(1) where the applicant volunteers them as part of their operating schedule; or 

 
(2) on receipt of relevant representations from potentially affected parties, or from 

responsible authorities . 
 
We will  produce a separate document containing pools of model conditions for 
premises licences and club premises certificates.  Applicants are under no compulsion 
to use these when preparing their operating schedules, but doing so may reduce the 
likelihood of representations being made about the application.  Should relevant 
representations be received, we may use conditions from the pool to address the 
concerns raised before we consider whether to refuse an application.   
 
Conditions attached to premises licences or club premises certificates in these 
circumstances will be appropriate, reasonable, proportionate, and relevant and will be 
focused on matters within the control of the individual licence-holders and others 
granted relevant permissions.  Conditions will be tailored to the style and 
characteristics of the individual premises.  These matters will centre on the premises 
and places being used for licensable activities and have regard to the vicinity of those 
premises or places.   
 
Our officers will draft appropriate conditions for premises licence and club registration 
certificates from the information supplied in operating schedules accompanying 
premises licence and club premises certificate applications.  
 
We recognise that we have no statutory power to place conditions where a temporary 
event notice has been given and no objections have been received from the police or 
Environmental Health, but urge premises users to take note of the guidance in this 
policy in appropriate circumstances. However, if the temporary event notice is given 
for premises that has a premises licence or club premises certificate, and an objection 
is received, then existing conditions relevant to the activities requested may be 
attached. 

Where no representations have been received, we must grant the authorisations in the 
terms sought. 

3. CUMULATIVE IMPACT 

 
The authority will, where appropriate, and having received relevant representations, 
take into account the cumulative effect that the existence of a concentration of 
premises in one area may have. A concentration of licensed premises can attract 
customers to the area to such a degree that it has an adverse impact on the 
surrounding area beyond the control of individual licence holders. 

Page 28



 
 
Where the cumulative effect of many licensed premises within an area gives rise to 
problems of public disorder and nuisance in the surrounding area the Council may 
consider it inappropriate for any further licensed premises to be established in the 
area and / or capacities to be increased. In these circumstances, and where suitable 
and sufficient evidence is provided, the Licensing Authority will consider declaring a 
cumulative impact area.  
 
If such a policy were adopted it would not override the duty on the Council to consider 
each application on its own merits. 
 
The absence of a special policy does not prevent any responsible authority or other 
party making representations on a application for the grant of a licence on the grounds 
that the premises will give rise to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the 
licensing objectives.  
  
In coming to any decision about cumulative impact the Council will also have regard to 
other mechanisms outside of the licensing regime which may also be available to 
address this issue.  

4. LICENSING HOURS 

 
The Council recognises the principle of flexibility and the potential benefits of avoiding 
concentrations of customers leaving premises simultaneously.  The Council will 
consider relevant representations, for example: 
 
Premises definitions 
 
For the purposes of the policy we define licensed premises as set out below. Upon 
receiving an application the Licensing Authority will place the premises in one of the 
categories shown, this category may be referred to at any subsequent Licensing Sub-
Committee. 
 

Premises Use 

Restaurants 

The sale of food and drink for consumption on the premises with 
full waiter service and/or full food menu throughout the trading 
period, and which typically has only incidental background 
music.  Alcohol sales do not predominant over activities.  It may 
occasionally include the provision of other licensable activities 
such as recorded or amplified music and limited facilities for the 
provision of dancing.   
 

Public houses, 
wine bars or 
other drinking 
establishments 

Primarily for the sale of alcohol and food for consumption on the 
premises, and which may include the provision of other 
licensable activities.  Will include a “drinking up period” between 
the last sale of alcohol and the closing time of the premises. 
 

Café-bars 
The sale of food and or light refreshments, and where alcohol 
sales are not a predominant feature of the premises  
  

Hotel bars 
The sale of alcohol and/or food, either to hotel residents or to 
non-residents 
  

Page 29



 

Night-clubs 

Primarily for the provision of licensable activities at night 
(typically including music and dancing), where alcohol sales are 
a strong feature  
 

Off-licences 
 
The sale of alcohol for consumption away from the premises  
 

Qualifying 
clubs 

Qualify for a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 
2003 

Take-aways 

The provision of late night refreshment (hot food and drink) 
between 11 pm and 5 am for consumption away from the 
premises 
 

Other 
entertainment 
venues 

The sale of alcohol and provision of late night refreshment (hot 
food and drink) is either absent or only ancillary to other 
licensable activities 
 

  
Location and operation of premises 
 
The table below sets out our approach to licensing premises when we have received 
relevant representations to a licensing application, notwithstanding that each 
application will be considered on its merits: 

 

Premises type Town centres*  Other areas 

Café-bars 
 

 
Will generally be granted according to the application 
 

Hotel bars 

Will generally be allowed alcohol sales and late night 
refreshment to residents 24-hours a day and to non-residents on 
the same basis as restaurants (see below) 
 

Night-clubs 
(including lap-
dancing clubs) 
 

Will generally be allowed 
licensable activities to 1 am 
only and until 10.30 pm on 
Sunday (other than for 
special occasions) 

Will generally be allowed 
licensable activities to midnight 
only (other than for special 
occasions) 

Off-licences 

Will generally be allowed 
alcohol sales to Midnight 
only 
  

Will generally be allowed alcohol 
sales in accordance with the 
normal opening hours of the shop 

Other 
entertainment 
venues not 
listed 

Will generally be granted for 
the hours and activities 
requested 

May be limited to midnight  

Public houses, 
wine bars and 
other drinking 
establishments 

 
Will generally be allowed alcohol sales to midnight only, and 
until 10.30 pm on Sunday (other than for special occasions). 

Qualifying 
clubs 

 
Will generally be granted for the hours and activities requested 
 

Restaurants Will generally be allowed Will generally be allowed alcohol 

Page 30



 
licensable activities to 2 am 
only (other than for special 
occasions) 
 

sales to midnight only (other than 
for special occasions) 

Take-aways 
 

Will generally be allowed 
late-night refreshment sales 
to 1 am only (other than for 
special occasions) 

Will generally be allowed late-
night refreshment sales to 
midnight only (other than for 
special occasions) 

Where we have to consider an application that involves alcohol sold for consumption 
on the premises, our policy will be to generally grant the licence with 30 minutes 
between the end of any sales of alcohol and the closing time of the premises (which 
we refer to as the “terminal hour”).   

 
We recognise that flexible licensing hours for alcohol sales can help to reduce 
concentrations of customers from leaving premises simultaneously, and to reduce 
conflict at late-night take-aways and taxi ranks.  At the same time, we recognise that 
taxis/private hire vehicles (and private vehicles) are effectively the only form of post-
midnight transport in the District. 
 
We are adopting this approach with the Government’s recommendations at paragraph 
13.44 of the statutory guidance in mind1.  This states that the Government 
acknowledges different licensing approaches may be appropriate for promoting the 
licensing objectives in different areas, and licensing authorities – in consultation with 
others – are best placed to make those decisions subject to the over-riding principle 
that opening hours must be not pre-determined without giving individual consideration 
to the merits of each application. 
 
This justifies a more restrictive approach in residential areas when relevant 
representations have been made.   

5. PETROL FILLING STATIONS 

Section 176 of the Licensing Act prohibits alcohol sales from premises that are used 
primarily as, or are part of premises that are primarily used, as garages for one or 
more of the retailing of petrol or derv; or the sale and maintenance of vehicles.   

If premises that are primarily used as a garage are granted a licence, that licence is 
“of no effect” and alcohol may not be lawfully sold.   

It follows that we must be satisfied whether or not any premises are used primarily as 
a garage before we grant a licence for it.  This is not to restrict the granting of a 
licence in such cases but for all parties to be clear as to whether the licence is an 
effective one or not.   

In determining applications for garages, we require applicants to demonstrate that 
their premises are not primarily used as a garage based on intensity of use.  Such 
evidence must be based on income and the numbers of individual sales over the 
previous two years to show that petrol and derv sales, and vehicle maintenance and 
sales, are not the premises main feature to show intensity of use.  Where such 
information is not available (because for example the premises have only just started 

                                      
1
 All references to the Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 refer to the October 

2014 revision. 

Page 31



 
trading), we will consider imposing a condition requiring this information  to be 
provided to the licensing authority on a regular basis for the following two years to 
ensure the premises are not primarily a garage. 

Where insufficient evidence exists to establish primary use, we will decide whether or 
not grant a licence and deal with any subsequent issues using our enforcement 
powers in conjunction with other responsible authorities.   

Where relevant representations have been made and a premises licence is granted in 
these circumstances, we shall treat it as an off-licence and grant hours accordingly. 

Paragraph 5.22 of the statutory guidance issued under the Act makes it clear that we 
must decide whether or not any premises is used primarily as a garage.  We are 
aware that different licensing authorities take a number of different approaches to this 
question.  This approach allows us to obtain the necessary information for us to reach 
that decision.   

6. CREATING FAMILY FRIENDLY TOWN CENTRES 

For the purpose of this policy Town Centres are: 

 
HERTFORD 
The area bounded by and including Bircherley Green, Bull Plain, Fore Street, South 
Street, Maidenhead Street, Market Street, Railway Street, Old Cross, Parliament 
Square, Salisbury Square, Market Place, Mill Bridge, Old Cross, St Andrews Street 
and The Wash. 
 
BISHOP’S STORTFORD  
The area bounded by and including North Street, Potter Street, South Street, Water 
Lane, Bridge Street, High Street, Riverside, Adderley Road, Station Road and Anchor 
Street. 
 
WARE 
The area bounded by and including – Baldock Street, High Street, Star Street, Viaduct 
Road and Amwell End. 
 
Our starting point is to seek a reduction in crime and disorder, consistent with our 
statutory duty under the Licensing Act and under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998 (as amended), and an improvement in local amenity through the reduction in 
alcohol-related anti-social behaviour. 
 
We want to encourage more restaurants, cafes, food establishments and venues 
offering entertainment and would positively encourage applications for those type of 
premises whilst discouraging alcohol-led premises.  Whether there is a need or not for 
further premises of a particular type, in accordance with the Secretary of State’s 
guidance at paragraph 13.18, will not be a consideration. 
 
Our approach will be: 

 
1. Where relevant representations have been received, we will consider granting 

applications which limit the hours of operation to those set out in this policy 
unless the exceptions detailed below can be demonstrated.    

  

Page 32



 
2. Where relevant representations have been received and exceptions can be 

shown for applications for public houses and night-clubs, we will consider 
whether to require waiter/table service for alcohol sales between 9 pm and the 
final time for the sale of alcohol.     

 
3. Where relevant representations have been received against the sale of 

alcohol after 10 pm and exceptions can be shown, we will consider whether 
premises shall be required to demonstrate they have an effective dispersal 
management plan in place; to install a closed-circuit television system that 
meets the reasonable requirements of Hertfordshire Constabulary; installing 
an electronic identification entry system; and to have use of a Pubwatch radio. 

 
 Exceptions will not be made on the grounds that: 
 
(1) the building design is of a high standard; we would expect all applicants will 

want to ensure the highest design standards possible; 
(2) that the applicant is of good character.  It is a legal requirement that premises 

selling alcohol must be under the management of a designated premises 
supervisor, who must themselves hold a personal licence to sell alcohol; 

(3) the premises are small.  Even small premises can contribute to crime, disorder 
and nuisance.   

 
We will consider whether to grant an application, even when relevant representations 
have been received, if the application: 
 
(1) contributes to the family-friendly development of the town centre; or 
(2) effects a real reduction in capacity of alcohol sales; or 
(3) replaces vertical drinking establishments with seated consumption and waiter 

service. 

Where an applicant wishes an exception to be considered it is their responsibility to 
evidence this. 

7. PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 

 
The Council will expect the applicant to detail in their operating schedule the steps 
proposed to deter and prevent crime and disorder, on and in the vicinity of the 
premises. The proposals made should have regard to the location, character, and 
condition of the area, the nature and extent of the proposed use, the types and 
numbers of persons likely to visit the premises.  
 
The Council will expect the applicant to demonstrate how they will prevent disorderly 
conduct, prevent sale of alcohol to a person who is drunk, and prevent the obtaining of 
alcohol for a person who is drunk on the licensed premises, and how the licence 
holder will exercise these duties so as to prevent or reduce the risk of anti-social 
behaviour by customers occurring elsewhere after they have left the premises. 
 
In considering licensing applications, the Council will have regard to relevant 
representations. The following issues, and/or how they are addressed by the operating 
schedule may be examined: 
 
(1) the ability and competency of the person in charge of the premises to monitor 

the premises at all times it is open; 

Page 33



 
 
(2) the training given to staff in how to defuse or manage conflict amongst patrons 

and crime prevention measures appropriate to those premises; 
 
(3) the physical security features installed in the premises. This may include 

matters such as the position of cash registers, and the security of cash boxes 
in gaming machines on the premises; where alcohol is stored in ‘off-licences’; 
the standard of CCTV that is installed; adequate lighting; metal detection and 
search facilities; the use of toughened drinking glasses in pubs and clubs; the 
removal of glasses or glass bottles used or discarded outside of the applicants 
premises;  

 
(4) risk assessment of drinks promotions which may contribute to the impact on 

crime and disorder (e.g. ‘happy hours’), and plans for minimising risks; 
 
(5) measures to prevent the consumption or supply of illegal drugs, including any 

search procedures and entry policies.  On licensed hotel or B and B premises, 
this should extend to keeping proper registrations of guests, with proofs of 
identification, and records of car registration numbers.  Where applicable, 
applicants are encouraged to show that they can comply with the Home Office 
guidance Safer Clubbing in relation to the control of illegal drugs on their 
premises, and they should agree a protocol with the police on the handling of 
illegal drugs found on their premises.; 

 
(6) where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to 

conduct age verification checks; 
 
(7) the likelihood of any violence, public disorder or policing problem if the licence 

is granted; 
 
(8) whether design of the premises has been considered having regard to 

reducing conflict and minimising opportunities for crime; 
 
(9) the measures taken to control admission to, and dispersal from, the premises, 

including the use of registered door supervisors; 
 
(10) any other such measures as may be appropriate, such as participation in a 

local pub watch scheme or other body designed to ensure effective liaison 
with the local community, ‘music wind-down policies’, restrictions on ‘happy 
hours’, and other examples of industry best practice; 

 
(11)  The arrangements for delegating and accounting for responsibility for the 

supply of alcohol on community premises operated without a DPS. 
 
Conditions will, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies, and the 
Council will also have regard to the views of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership. 
 
It is recommended that applicants discuss the crime prevention procedures and 
management arrangements for their premises with the Council and the police before 
making a formal application. 

Page 34



 
8. PUBLIC SAFETY 

 
The Council will expect the applicant to detail in their operating schedule the steps 
proposed to ensure the physical safety of people using the relevant premises or place. 
 
Conditions to promote public safety will be those that are appropriate, in particular 
circumstances of any individual premises or club premises, and will not duplicate other 
requirements of the law.  Equally, the attachment of conditions to the premises licence 
or certificate will not in any way relieve employers of the statutory duty to comply with 
the requirements of other legislation including the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, 
Associated Regulations and especially the requirements under the management of 
Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 and Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2004, to undertake risk assessments.  Employers should assess the risks, 
including risks from fire and take measures necessary to avoid and control these risks.  
Licence conditions enforcing those requirements will therefore not be attached. 
 
Where legislation does not cover the unique circumstances of licensing and 
entertainment at specific premises, licence conditions will be used, as appropriate. 
Maximum occupancy limits in the premises licence will be specified only where 
necessary for the promotion of public safety or the prevention of disorder.  In such a 
case, the Council will set a capacity in consultation with the Hertfordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service and the Council’s Building Control service.  
 
It will be expected that the operating schedule will specify occupancy limits for the 
following premises: 
 
(1) High Volume Vertical Drinking 
(2) Nightclubs 
(3) Cinemas 
(4) Theatres 
(5) Other premises where regulated entertainment is likely to attract large 

numbers of persons. 
 
The Council will consider whether any measures or restrictions are placed on alcohol 
sales to prevent binge drinking and promote ‘sensible drinking’, including 
commitments to comply with approved codes of practice.  

Preventing alcohol abuse related Public Health issues within East Herts 

 
East Herts Council’s Environmental Health services and the Licensing section already 
work closely together.  Further, the service now also incorporates Community Safety 
alongside its Public Health officers.  The alignment of these different service areas has 
highlighted synergies, which, with appropriate policies and partnership support, could 
see significant benefits for residents. 
 
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 made primary care trust’s 
(PCT) or local health board’s (LHB) a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 
2003. Therefore they are able to make representations against licence applications. 
Currently, unlike in Scotland, England does not have a fifth licensing objective relating 
to Public Health. 
 
The council in considering the importance of Public Health within this policy has 
considered the Revised Guidance at length. 

Page 35



 
 
East Herts council has taken the decision, with the full understanding and knowledge 
of the section 182 Revised Guidance and  relevant legislation, to place Public Health 
as a central consideration in its decision making process. As a result, where a relevant 
representation is made regarding the undermining of the Public Safety objective, and 
that representation relates to public health and is supported by evidence, that 
representation will be considered during the decision making process.  This includes 
considering information about the impact of alcohol abuse upon wider Public Health 
issues, such as alcohol related illness and harms, and not just immediate impacts 
such as slips trips and falls from intoxication. The purpose of this is not to attempt to 
make Public Health the fifth licensing objective, rather using the natural and wider 
definition of the Public Safety objective to help address obvious, real and documented 
alcohol related health issues within our communities. 
 
(See appendix A for further information) 

9. PREVENTION OF NUISANCE 

 
The Council will expect the applicant to demonstrate within the operating schedule 
how they intend to prevent nuisance and disturbance arising. 
 
In considering an application, the Council will consider the adequacy of proposed 
measures to remove or effectively manage the potential for nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
The Council will expect applicants to demonstrate they have considered: 
 
(1) the proximity of residential accommodation; 
 
(2) the type of use proposed, and the likely numbers of customers; 
 
(3) proposed hours of operation and the frequency of activity; 
 
(4) the steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent noise and 

vibration escaping from the premises, including music, noise from ventilation 
equipment, and human voices. This may include the installation of 
soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound limitation devices; 

 
(5) the steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent 

disturbance by customers arriving at or leaving the premises. This will usually 
be of greater importance between 10 p.m. and 7 a.m. than at other times of 
the day; 

 
(6) the steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent queuing 

(either by pedestrian or vehicular traffic). If some queuing is inevitable then 
queues should be diverted away from neighbouring premises or be otherwise 
managed to prevent disturbance or obstruction; 

 
(7)  the steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to help ensure 

patrons and staff leave the premises quietly; 
 
(8) the arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of 

parking by patrons on local residents; 

Page 36



 
 
(9) the provision for public transport in the locality (including taxis and private hire 

vehicles) for patrons; 
 
(10) the level of likely disturbance from associated vehicle movements; 
 
(11) the use of smoking shelters, gardens and other open-air areas; 
 
(12) the location of delivery and collection areas and delivery/collection times; 
 
(13) the appropriate placing of external lighting, including security lighting; 
 
(14) refuse storage and litter (including fly posters and illegal placards); 
 
(15) the history of nuisance complaints against the premises, particularly where 

statutory notices have been served on the present licensees; 
 
(16) the applicant’s past success in controlling anti-social behaviour and preventing 

nuisance;  
 
(17) odour nuisance, e.g. cooking smells; 
 
(18) any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance; 
 
(19) any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or 

representative. 

10. PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM 

 
The Council will expect operating schedules to specify the measures and 
management controls in place to protect children from harm. 
 
The Council will consider public health data when exercising this duty and the likely 
impact of alcohol misuse upon children.  
 
This includes considering information about the impact of alcohol abuse upon wider 
Public Health issues, such as alcohol related illness and harms, and not just 
immediate impacts such as slips trips and falls from intoxication. 
 
The legislation recognises the right of licence holders (serving alcohol) to allow 
accompanied children into their premises at any time. The Council will not normally 
seek to limit their access (above that specified in the Act) to any premises unless it is 
necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm. Where relevant 
representations are received, and harm is likely, conditions may be imposed that 
restrict children from entering all or part of licensed premises: 
 
(1) at certain times of the day; 
 
(2) when certain licensable activities are taking place; 
 
(3) under certain ages, e.g. 16 or 18;  
 
(4)  unless accompanied by an adult. 

Page 37



 
 
Examples of premises where these conditions may be considered include premises 
where: 
 
(1) there is any entertainment or services of an adult nature provided; 
 
(2) there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or premises with a 

reputation for under-age drinking; 
 
(3) there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; 
 
(4) there is a significant element of gambling on the premises; 
 
(5) there is a presumption that children under 18 should not be allowed (e.g. to 

enter nightclubs, except when under 18 discos are being held); 
 
(6) there have been representations from police, the area safeguarding children’s 

board or other relevant agency or representative. 
   
Applicants and licence holders of premises intending to offer public entertainment 
where it will be lawful and not contrary to this policy for children to be admitted without 
an accompanying adult, the applicant or licensee will be expected to provide adequate 
numbers of adult staff to ensure the safety and well-being of the admitted children. 
Details of such arrangements must be included in the operating schedule.   
 
The Council will expect the operating schedule to specify the measures and 
management controls in place to prevent alcohol being served to children, other than 
in those limited circumstances permitted by the Act. 
 
The Council will expect the operating schedule to state what arrangements will be put 
in place to ensure that children will be restricted from viewing age-restricted films 
classified according to the recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification. 
 
Nothing in this statement prevents a licence holder excluding children from their 
premises. Conditions requiring the admission of children to premises cannot be 
attached to licences.  
 
The ‘Responsible Authority’ in relation to the protection of children from harm is the 
Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board at Hertfordshire County Council. An 
emerging issue highlighted by the Board is child sexual exploitation. 
 
Child sexual exploitation is a form of child abuse which is complex and can manifest 
itself in different ways. Essentially it involves children and young people receiving 
something – for example, accommodation, alcohol, drugs, gifts or affection – in 
exchange for sexual activity or having others perform sexual activities on them.  
 
East Herts council recognises that this sort of exploitation could potentially be linked to 
licensed premises and as such will seek to promote knowledge and understanding of 
the issue amongst those in the licensed trade. Where potential instances of child 
sexual exploitation are identified to the Licensing Authority these will be referred to the 
appropriate bodies. 
 
“Child sexual exploitation is one of the biggest child protection issues of our  

Page 38



 
time, but together we can make a real difference. By spotting the signs early,  
we can all take practical steps to protect children.” (Anne Marie Carrie, Chief 
Executive, Barnardo’s). 

11. INSPECTION OF PREMISES 

 
Officers will check that statutory notices are correctly displayed in compliance with the 
requirements of the legislation.  
 
During the course of its inspections, the Council may refer to any other agency any 
circumstance it finds that appears to it to be a contravention of the legislation enforced 
by that agency. Equally where a premises user appears unaware of a requirement that 
is outside of the Licensing Authority’s remit officers will do their best to signpost 
people to the appropriate authority. 
 
The frequency of subsequent inspections will be according to the determined level of 
risk. 

12. ENFORCEMENT POLICY 

 
Enforcement action and investigation will be targeted on premises where unauthorised 
licensable activities or breaches of conditions take place or where complaints from the 
public are received. 
 
The Council has a Enforcement Policy, based around the principles of consistency, 
transparency and proportionality set out in the Department of Trade and Industry’s 
Enforcement Concordat and which also takes into account the Attorney-General’s 
Guidelines to Crown Prosecutors for bringing prosecutions. 
 
A graduated response will be taken where contraventions of legislation are found or 
where conditions have been contravened. For instance an isolated administrative 
offence, such as failing to maintain records, may be dealt with by a written warning 
whilst more serious offences, which has either been committed over a period of time 
or which jeopardise public safety may result in a referral for prosecution. 
 
The Council will seek to work with the police in enforcing licensing legislation and 
strive to have a joint enforcement protocol with all the relevant agencies. 
 
Results of enforcement or investigation will be made available to responsible 
authorities who may wish to include this evidence in a Review of a premises licence or 
club premises certificate   

13. DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS  

 
In all instances complaints received about licensed premises, events and activities will 
be recorded. Where appropriate, contact will be made to the premises to advise the 
premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor of the complaint 
  
Where appropriate, relevant authorities will be advised of complaints received. 
 
Where complaints relate to a breach of licence conditions, action will be taken to 
gather evidence in order that, in conjunction with the enforcement policy, the 
appropriate steps are taken to address the issues.  

Page 39



 
14. REVIEWS 

 
A responsible authority or other person may apply for the review of a premises licence 
at any stage, or may make a representation about an existing application for review on 
the grounds that any of the four licensing objectives is being undermined.  

15. APPEALS 

 
Any party to licensing proceedings (including residents) aggrieved by licensing 
decisions of the Council are (in most cases) entitled to appeal to the Magistrates court 
with 21 days of the receiving the decision notice. 
 
Where a party enters an appeal against a decision notice issued by Licensing Sub-
Committee, the Head of Legal Services is authorised to negotiate, in consultation with 
Chair of Licensing Committee and Director of Neighbourhood Services. 

16. ADMINISTRATION, EXERCISE AND DELEGATIONS OF FUNCTIONS 

 
The Licensing Committee will consist of between ten and fifteen Councillors that will 
sit usually three times per year, but at least annually. The Council will review this 
Policy at least every 3 years. Any changes to the Policy will include full consultation. 
 
Sub–Committee(s) of at least two and usually three Councillors will determine 
applications where representations have been received from responsible authorities or 
other parties. Ward Councillors will not serve on a Sub–Committee involving an 
application within their own ward. 
 
The Licensing Committee will also deal with other licensing matters not associated 
with the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
Where a Councillor who is a member of a Licensing Committee or a Sub-Committee 
has had direct involvement in the affairs of an application before them, in the interests 
of good governance they will disqualify themselves from any involvement in the 
decision-making process affecting the premises licence in question. 
 
A Sub-Committee may also refer to the Licensing Committee any matter it is unable to 
deal with because of the number of its members who are unable to take part in the 
consideration or discussion of any matter or vote on any question with respect to it. 
 
Each decision of the Licensing Committee or its Sub-Committee(s) shall be 
accompanied with clear reasons for the decision. A summary of the decision will be 
sent to the applicant and all other parties. 
 
The Council’s authorised officers will deal with all other licence applications where 
either no representations have been received, or where representations have been 
received and it is agreed by all the parties that a hearing is not necessary. 
 
Council officers will make the decisions on whether representations or applications for 
licence reviews should be referred to the Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee(s) 
and whether representations are frivolous or vexatious. Where representations are 
rejected, the person making that representation will be given written reasons why that 
is the case.  
 

Page 40



 
Council officers will draft appropriate conditions for premises licences and club 
registration certificates that are consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
The Council will seek to integrate the Licensing function with its various other 
strategies and policies to promote  the licensing objectives through utilising the 
collaborative and partnership working arrangements and networks that engage with 
responsible authorities, other parties and other key stakeholders. 
 

17. MONITORING OF LICENSING FUNCTION  

 
The police, fire authority and other responsible authorities will be encouraged to report 
to the Council annually on the operation of the licensing function. 
 
The Director (Neighbourhood Services) will report annually to the Licensing 
Committee on the licensing function. 

18. MISCELLANEOUS AND SUPPLEMENTARY 

Promotion of other strategies 

 
The Council will monitor the impact of licensing in relation to the National Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Strategy, in particular the effect of alcohol misuse on health, crime 
and public disorder, productivity at work, family and social networks. 
 
This Statement of Licensing Policy contributes to the Councils Public Health role and 
supports the Councils Health and Wellbeing strategy 2013 -18. 
 
Arrangements have been made for licensing committees to receive, when appropriate, 
information on the needs of the local tourist economy. 
 
The council will keep the licensing committee apprised of the employment situation in 
the area and the need for new investment and employment where appropriate.  
 
The licensing authority will report to Hertfordshire County Council with regard to the 
need to disperse people from town centres in order to avoid concentrations of people 
which can produce nuisance and disorder. 
 
The Race Relations Act 1976 as amended obliges public authorities to have due 
regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equality of 
opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups. The Council 
has produced a race equality scheme, and will monitor this Policy for any adverse 
impact on the promotion of race equality. 

Planning permission 

 
Any premises which needs a licence should preferably also have a permitted or lawful 
use under planning legislation. If the premises do not have this, then it will need to be 
obtained separately before the licensed activity can lawfully take place. 
 
The Council Planning Department is a Responsible Authority, and receives copies of 
premises licence applications.  Where there is no planning consent for the use for 
which the licence is sought, Planning will be responsible for pointing this out to the 

Page 41



 
applicant outside of the remit of this policy, and the paragraphs below are included for 
information only. 
 
The Council's Planning Policies are set out in its Adopted Local Plan. For further 
information see www.eastherts.gov.uk. 

In many cases where an application is made for a new licence or variation, the 
planning use will already be authorised by a previous planning permission or because 
the premises has a long-standing lawful use.  Therefore, a new application for 
planning permission is often not required.  However, the existing planning permission 
might, and if recently granted is very likely to have conditions restricting the use of the 
premises in some way: e.g. the hours of operation. In that case, anybody seeking a 
licence to operate beyond those hours will need to seek and obtain a revised planning 
permission or a variation or removal of the relevant planning condition. 

Early Morning Restriction Orders and Late Night Levy 

The Licensing Authority is aware of its powers to implement Early Morning Restriction 
Orders and impose a Late Night Levy on licensed premises.  Consideration of these 
two powers has taken place and at the time that this policy was published no such 
Orders or Levies had been implemented. The council will review this decision should 
evidence for the need for either measure comes to light. 

Contact 

 
For further information about this policy, or to discuss any current or future application, 
please contact:  
 
Licensing Team, Community Safety and Health Services, Wallfields, Pegs Lane, 
Hertford SG13 8EQ (tel. 01279 655261 or email: 
community.protection@eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Contact details for the responsible authorities can be found at: www.eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Contact details for East Herts Magistrates’ Courts (licensing appeals);   
The Licensing Clerk, Watford Magistrates’ Court, Clarendon Road, Watford, 
Hertfordshire, WD17 1ST (tel. 01923 297505). 
 
  
  

Page 42



 
Appendix A 
 
Rationale - Including wider Public Health concerns in Licensing decision making. 
 

• The guidance – Legal position 
  
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
October 2014 (now referred to as ‘The guidance.’) 
 
Under the heading ‘Legal Status’, the above document states  
 
1.9  Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a 

licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182. This Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing 
authorities to that extent. However, this Guidance cannot anticipate every 
possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise and, as long as 
licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may depart 
from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons. 

 

• The guidance - “Properly understood the guidance, good reason to do so” 
 
Members of the East Herts Licensing Committee have undergone comprehensive 
required training and consequently understand their obligations.   
Further, East Herts Council held a seminar in its Council Chamber on the 4th April 
2014 to understand and discuss how the Licensing Committee could support the 
Council’s duty of care towards its residents in respect of Public Health. 
 
At this seminar, there were presentations from the Licensing team, the County 
Community Safety Unit, the County Domestic Violence coordinator, Public Health and 
paramedics.  In addition, Licensing Professionals and Other Licensing Chairmen from 
all over Hertfordshire attended and provided contributions to the discussion. 
 
The presentations at the seminar provided powerful information, empirical and 
anecdotal, about the impact of alcohol abuse in East Herts. 
 
Following the seminar, the matter was raised at the full East Herts Licensing 
committee on 17th July 2014 and members supported a Chairman’s announcement 
that he thought that further consideration should be given to public health and in 
particular, alcohol abuse and that their Statement of Licensing Policy should be 
rewritten to place Public Health as a major consideration in their decision making. 
 

• The guidance - Public Safety 
 
2.8 Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their 

premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the 
safety of people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is 
addressed in other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of 
accidents and injuries and other immediate harms that can result from alcohol 
consumption such as unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. 

 
First view of this appears to allow licence holders to not have to consider Public Health 
when considering applications they make and how they will operate under the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

Page 43



 
 

• Home Office Additional guidance 2014 
 

Home Office advice to Public Health in “Additional Guidance for health bodies on 
exercising functions under the Licensing Act 2003” says: 
 

It should also be noted that public safety only concerns the physical safety of 
people using licensed premises and not wider alcohol-related health harms 
such as liver disease, alcohol-related deaths and other issues around the 
promotion of public health. Any representation made therefore needs to focus 
on the physical safety of individuals, such as alcohol-related accidents and 
injuries.  

 
This document was issued in September 2014 as guidance to Public health bodies 
following their attaining Responsible Authority status, but it carries no statutory weight 
or obligation.  Indeed it concludes with: 
 

“This good practice guidance should be viewed as indicative and may be 
subject to change. The content of this guidance broadly reflects but is not the 
statutory guidance (or any part of the statutory guidance) issued by the 
Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.” 

 
East Herts Council view 
 
In respect of paragraph 1.9 “a licensing authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance 
issued”, the use of the phrase ‘have regard to’ clearly indicates that it was not the 
intent of Parliament that the guidance must always be complied with. This is also 
indicated by the document being called ‘Guidance’ rather than a stronger word 
indicating that compliance is required. 
 
Since a Public Health body has recently become empowered to make representations 
in response to an application, there appears to be no logical nor legal reason why, 
acting as a Responsible Authority, it cannot make a representation about the 
Licensing Objective ‘Public Safety’ when that safety concern is a public health matter. 
 
Indeed the rai-son d'ê-tre for Public Health is to improve the health and well-being of 
the general public, a fact that must have been clearly obvious to the legislators at the 
time they made them a Responsible Authority. 
 
The fact that the Home Office proposes that Public Health bodies limit their objections 
to physical safety such as accidents and injuries was discussed at the seminar and 
subject to further comment at the subsequent Licensing Committee.   
 
Members agreed to have regard to Home Office guidance, but also decided that as 
gate keepers to the supply of alcohol in East Herts, wider Public Health concerns 
arising from alcohol abuse were far too significant to ignore.  Members agreed to 
consider information from Public Health bodies as appropriate, providing it could be 
shown to relate to the particular application before them. 

Page 44



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2015 
 
REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 

 CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC FUNDRAISING ASSOCIATIONS 
(PFRA) RESPONSE TO SUGGESTED AMENDMENTS TO DRAFT 
SITE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT  

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report: 
 

• To inform the members of the Licensing Committee about the 
details of discussion undertaken with the PFRA regarding a site 
management agreements for East Herts District. 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE: that 

 

(A) Members make recommendations regarding proposed 
changes to the draft site management agreement.  

  

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 Charity cash collections on the street need a licence from the 

council (or the police in London) under The Police, Factories, etc. 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916.  

 
1.2 However, an issue arises when determining whether face-to-face 

Direct Debit street fundraising is covered by this Act.  
 
1.3 The 1916 Act (section 5 – the only bit that is still in force) very 

clearly states a licence is required for a collection of money. The 
Act says that a licence is required in order to “collect money or sell 
articles for the benefit of charitable or other purposes” (s5.1). 
Direct Debits are not considered to be money in law; they are 
‘promises of money’ at a later date.  

 
1.4 Face-to-face collections conducted door-to-door by visiting 

householders is covered by a completely different act, the House-
to-House Collections Act 1939. Unlike the 1916 Act, the 1939 Act 
is generally held to cover face-to-face Direct Debit fundraising 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



 
  

because it states that a licence is required for the collection of 
‘money or other property’. 

 
1.5 This lack of regulation of Direct Debit collections causes a number 

of issues for the council. Despite an authority having a policy 
regarding cash collections, which may dictate the locations and 
numbers of collectors, and issuing permits accordingly Direct 
Debit collectors can turn up without notice. 

 
1.6 This leads to increased complaints from members of the public 

using these areas, businesses who feel customers are avoiding 
certain areas and from the charity holding a legitimate cash 
collection. 

 
1.7 Some authorities have, with very limited success, tried to use the 

1916 Act to move direct debit collections on if they do not have 
permit but ultimately this is a bluff and there is no case law to 
back up this position. 

 
1.8 At East Herts we have been positively engaging with the Direct 

Debit collection sector so that we are able to have some control 
over the number of collectors within our Town centres. To do this 
we have encouraged them to consult us on dates and have 
issued permits similar to those we are required to issue for cash 
collections. However ultimately, if Direct Debit collectors choose 
not to do this, and just turn up, there is no recourse for the 
council. 

 
1.9 A report was put before the Licensing Committee on 20 

November 2014 regarding a draft site management from the 
PFRA. The Licensing Committee made a number of 
recommendations and officers took these back to the PFRA and 
the report that follows details the response.  

 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 The two suggestions that came out of the November meeting of 

the Licensing Committee were: 
 

• to remove Maidenhead Street from the Hertford SMA due in 
part to the redevelopment of the area; 

• that the South side of Ware High Street be excluded from the 
Ware SMA due to the narrow pavement. 

 

Page 46



 
  

2.2 The PFRA Outreach Officer has taken the suggestions back to 
the members of the PFRA and the responses are below. 

 
2.3 With regards to the removal of Maidenhead Street from the 

Hertford SMA the members of the PFRA believe that this would 
make the agreement unworkable. 

 

2.4 Looking at the Hertford plan in the draft of the site agreement 
attached to this report as Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ the 
removal of Maidenhead Street would halve the permitted area. 
This presents a number of issues for both collectors and the 
public. It would concentrate the collectors into a more confined 
area which is something the PFRA try to avoid. Members of the 
public are likely to feel that the area is inundated with collectors 
and may actively avoid the area. It was suggested by officers that 
this issue could be addressed by permitting less collectors in the 
smaller area but PFRA members again felt this would make the 
SMA unworkable. 

 
2.5 PFRA members felt that by excluding collectors from a busy and 

redeveloped area of the town centre their collections may not be 
financially viable. 

 

2.6 The PFRA have suggested that it would be possible to exclude 
Maidenhead Street from the SMA for a fixed period of time during 
any redevelopment work. This takes into account the possibility 
that the public highway may be narrowed by works and that it 
would be inappropriate for collectors to be there at that time. 

 

2.7 With regards to excluding the South side of Ware High Street from 
the Ware SMA the members of the PFRA believe that this would 
make the agreement unworkable. 

 

2.8 PFRA members again believe that to concentrate collectors on 
one side of the High Street would have a number of impacts. It is 
possible that members of the public may actively avoid the North 
side of the High Street as this may be perceived as the area 
inundated with collectors. Whether this is the case or not 
businesses based on the North side of the High Street may blame 
this decision for driving customers away. 

 

2.9 The PFRA have stated that their members would not choose to 
locate themselves where the pavement narrowed for safety 
reasons and it may also discourage people to stop and talk to 
collectors for fear of blocking the pavement. The PFRA rule book 
requires its member’s collectors to not ‘obstruct’ the public and it 

Page 47



 
  

is likely that this rule would be breached if collectors located 
themselves on the narrower part of the High Street. In those 
circumstances the PFRA could take action. 
 

2.10 Areas on the North side of the High Street have also been 
identified as being narrow, in particular the area on the corner of 
Church Street where vehicles enter from the High Street. 

 

2.11 The PFRA members have suggested that a revised plan could be 
used for the Ware SMA with the narrow areas excluded from the 
agreement so that they cannot be used by collectors. 

 
3.0 Officers observations 
 
3.1 As previously detailed to the Licensing Committee the authority 

currently has no control of the number and location of direct debt 
fundraisers. 

 
3.2 If Members wish to exclude Maidenhead Street permanently from 

the Hertford SMA then it is unlikely that the PFRA will be willing to 
sign an SMA. If Maidenhead Street is to be excluded from the 
Hertford SMA during redevelopment work when will the dates to 
be excluded from the SMA be known? 

 
3.3 Are Members happy to include the South side of Ware High Street 

in the Ware SMA? If the answer is yes then Officers would be 
willing to visit Ware High Street with the Members that have 
expressed concerns regarding the pavement widths to identify 
those areas that should be excluded. If Members wish to exclude 
the South side of Ware High Street completely then it is unlikely 
that the PFRA will be willing to sign an SMA. 

 
4.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
4.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’.  

 
Background Papers 
http://www.pfra.org.uk/ 
 
Contact Member: Councillor Malcolm Alexander – Executive Member 

for Community Safety and Environment. 
malcolm.alexander@eastherts.gov.uk  

 

Page 48



 
  

Contact Officer: Brian Simmonds – Head of Community Safety and 
Health Services, Extn: 1498. 

 brian.simmonds@eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Report Author: Oliver Rawlings – Senior Specialist Licensing  

  Officer, Extn: 1629.      
  oliver.rawlings@eastherts.gov.uk 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 
IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly those 
who are vulnerable. 
 

Consultation: Consultation with Direct Debit fundraisers and the 
professional fundraising agencies they use through the 
Public Fundraising Regulatory Association (PFRA) which 
covers 90% of the sector. 

Legal: No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Financial: No issues identified by report author or contact officer  

Human 
Resource: 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Risk 
Management: 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts: 
 

No issues identified by report author or contact officer 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Essential Reference Paper ‘C’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

November 2014 

Site Management Agreement 

Site Management 
Agreement 

Between PFRA and East Hertfordshire District 
Council 

Prepared by: Stephen Service  +44 (0)20 7401 8452 
 Outreach Officer Stephen@pfra.org.uk 
  www.pfra.org.uk  
 
 Page 53



 
2 | Site Management Agreement  www.pfra.org.uk 

1 Purpose 

The purpose and spirit of this voluntary Site Management Agreement (SMA) is to 

facilitate responsible face-to-face fundraising in East Hertfordshire District Council and 

provide a balance between the duty of charities and not-for-profit organisations to 

fundraise and the rights of the public to go about their business without the impression of 

undue inconvenience. For the avoidance of doubt, this document does not constitute a 

legal contract. 

Once this agreement is in place it should minimise the administration for the council, 

providing just one channel for information and support regarding face-to-face fundraisers, 

as nominated ‘gatekeepers’ only have to deal with one organisation, the PFRA, instead of 

dealing with each individual charity and fundraising organisation separately. 

 

2 Statement of Conformity 

All fundraisers will abide at all times by the relevant elements of the Institute of 

Fundraising’s Code of Fundraising Practice, and the PFRA’s Rule Book, or face the 

appropriate penalties. 

If local authority officers note fundraisers contravening the PFRA’s Rule Book or any local 

clause within the SMA, they will inform the PFRA’s Head of Standards by contacting them 

on 020 7401 8452, providing details of the incident.   

 

3 Access Details 

3.1 Sites, team sizes, positioning, and frequency 
Sites may be used as follows, as shown in the maps at Appendix 1: 

Bishop’s Stortford  
 

Potter Street / South Street between Newtown Road / Station Road and Bridge Street/ 

High Street  

Capacity: maximum of 4 fundraisers 

Positioning: fundraisers to be spread out along the length of the site, using pathways on 

both sides of the road. 

Frequency: Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday only.  

 
 
Hertford town centre 
 
Railway Street / Maidenhead Street between the Wash and Market Street. 
Bircherley Green between Railway Street and gated section.  
 

Capacity: maximum of 4 fundraisers 

Positioning: fundraisers to be spread out along the length of the site. 

Frequency: Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday only.  

 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
3 Site Management Agreement | www.pfra.org.uk 

Ware  

 

High Street between Star Street and Church Street. 

Capacity: maximum of 4 fundraisers 

Positioning: fundraisers to be spread out along the length of the site, using pathways on 

both sides of the road. 

Frequency: Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday only.  

 

Where fundraisers are found to be working outside of the agreed locations, they must 

comply with requests made by Local Authority Officials and reposition themselves 

correctly or as directed on-site.  

Only one charity will be present on any one site on any one day. 

Fundraising will only be permitted between the hours of 9am and 7pm, unless otherwise 

specified.  

Any exclusion dates (e.g. specific event days) are to be announced by the Council to the 

PFRA to be booked into the PFRA’s diary management system, giving a minimum of 4 

weeks’ notice to the PFRA from date of diary delivery. 

 

3.2 Other Conditions 
Fundraisers should be positioned in such a way as to offer an adequate ‘comfort zone’ to 

those users of the public highway who do not wish to engage. In furtherance of this, it is 

desirable that a minimum footway channel of 1 metre be maintained between fundraisers 

and the kerb / shop frontage where it is reasonable to do so.  

Fundraisers should maintain a reasonable distance (of approximately 3 metres) apart 

from one another and any other legitimate street activities (e.g. street traders, Big Issue 

sellers, buskers, newspaper stands, promotional activities and market researching). 

 

4 Information Required 

4.1 Nominated Gatekeeper 
The nominated gatekeeper for East Hertfordshire District Council is XXXXXXX, (name 

and role), and his/her contact details are XXXXXXX (email and telephone). In his/her 

absence all enquiries should be made to XXXXXXX (name, role and contact details) 

4.2 Required Information 
The PFRA will maintain and manage the diary schedule. Diary/Schedule information will 

include: contact details for the agency (if applicable); and charity being fundraised for.  

Copies of the diary are to be made available to: 

XXXXXXXx (pls insert name, role and contact details of any other relevant officers) 

 

These contact details shall be updated as and when necessary. 

4.3 Transition and continuity 
Should the nominated gatekeeper move on or responsibilities otherwise change, the 

gatekeeper will inform his/her successor of the detail of this agreement, the relationship 

Page 55



 
4 | Site Management Agreement  www.pfra.org.uk 

with the PFRA, arrangements for the regulation of face-to-face fundraising, and provide 

the PFRA with contact details for the successor. 

 

5 Complaint Management  

PFRA will respond to and seek to resolve all complaints received, and issue penalties 

according to its rules. The Council will provide real time notification of any complaints it 

wishes to be resolved immediately and provide sufficient detail for any retrospective 

complaints to be investigated. Where the collection agencies or the charities themselves 

receive complaints it is expected that they will provide information to the PFRA including 

information about the identity of any individual collector who is subject of a complaint and 

of the action taken (if any). 

Members of the public are encouraged to direct complaints about charity fundraising to 

the Fundraising Standards Board (FRSB).  

 

6 Working Together 

East Hertfordshire District Council agrees to work with the PFRA to raise awareness 

regarding this site management scheme, including explaining what face-to-face 

fundraising is, the PFRA, the Code of Fundraising Practice, and facts about Direct Debit. 

The PFRA monitors member organisations, through a programme of random spot-

checks, responding to complaints, and other mechanisms, to ensure fundraisers’ 

adherence to the Code of Fundraising Practice, PFRA Rules, and Site Management 

Agreements. The PFRA can give appropriate penalties or sanctions to those not abiding 

by the rules. 

This SMA will be reviewed 6 months after it is signed, and then once every 12 months, if 

necessary, or earlier if there is just cause to do so. All amendments will be agreed in 

writing before becoming effective. Either party can withdraw from this agreement, giving 3 

months’ notice in writing. 

Depending on when this agreement is signed, in relation to the PFRA’s bidding/allocation 

cycle, there will be a lead-time of up to 8 weeks before the agreement can be fully 

implemented. 

Signed For and On Behalf Of PFRA:  

Print name:  

Job title:  

Date:  

  

Signed For and On Behalf Of East 

Hertfordshire District Council: 
 

Print name:  

Job title:  

Date:  

Page 56



Appendix 1 - Map(s)  

Plan showing the area (s) where fundraising is to be permitted: 

 Bishop’s Stortford  

 

 Page 57



 
6 | Site Management Agreement  www.pfra.org.uk 

 
 
 
Hertford town centre 

 

Page 58



 

 
Ware  
 
 

 

 Page 59



 
8 | Site Management Agreement  www.pfra.org.uk 

 

 

Appendix 2 - Direct Debit Guarantee 

Know your rights - The Direct Debit Guarantee 

Direct Debit is one of the safest ways of making charitable donations. Organisations 

using the Direct Debit Scheme go through a careful vetting process before they're 

authorised, and are closely monitored by the banking industry. The efficiency and security 

of the Scheme is monitored and protected by your own bank or building society. 

 

The Direct Debit Scheme applies to all Direct Debits. It protects you in the rare event that 

anything goes wrong.  

 

 

The Direct Debit Guarantee 

• The Guarantee is offered by all banks and building societies that accept 

instructions to pay Direct Debits.  

• If there are any changes to the amount, date or frequency of your Direct Debit the 

organisation will notify you (normally 10 working days) in advance of your account 

being debited or as otherwise agreed. If you request the organisation to collect a 

payment, confirmation of the amount and date will be given to you at the time of 

the request.  

• If an error is made in the payment of your Direct Debit, by the organisation or your 

bank or building society, you are entitled to a full and immediate refund of the 

amount paid from your bank or building society.  

o If you receive a refund you are not entitled to, you must pay it back when 

the organisation asks you to.  

• You can cancel a Direct Debit at any time by simply contacting your bank or 

building society. Written confirmation may be required. Please also notify the 

organisation.  

 
 

Page 60



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2015 
 
REPORT BY DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
LICENSING ACTIVITY – QUARTER 4 OF 2014 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report: 
 
To update Members on activity in the licensing department re: 
 

• Processing licences, 

• Enforcement activity, and 

• Other implementation of the Service Plan. 
 

RECOMMENDATION FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE: that 

 

(A) The report be received. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 This report presents data by full quarters on processing and 

enforcement data, and Licensing Sub Committee involvement, on 
licences, notices, and permits, and applications including  

 

• Alcohol, entertainment, and late night refreshment licences 
under the Licensing Act 2003,  

• Gaming under the Gambling Act 2005,  

• Taxi drivers, vehicle proprietors and operators. 
 
1.2 This report also records developments in the service that 

implement the Service Plan. 
 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 See Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ for performance data for 

quarter 4 of 2014: 1 October – 31 December 2014.  This contains 
the numbers of applications or notices received, and totals of 
current licences. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 61



 
  

2.2 During this quarter the enforcement team have undertaken 90 
actions which are divided between visits, inspections and 
investigations. These have been analysed further and are 
recorded as: 

 

• Taxi Inspections and Investigations  2 

• Premises Complaints    16 

• Premises Visits     45 

• Gambling Premises visits   0 

• Notice checks     5 

• Invoice visits/chase ups   22   

• House to House Collection complaints 0 

• Taxi Camera Investigations                      0 

• TENS Complaints and Investigations         0 
 

All complaints regarding taxis and premises have been fully 
investigated.  

 
2.3 In respect of premises, the breaches of the licences have been 

addressed in accordance with our Licensing Enforcement Policy. 
Currently at the time of reporting there are 26 outstanding 
invoices. There have been 2 premises suspended and no 
premises licence revoked due to non payment of fees. 

 
2.4 A significant part of the enforcement team’s work is to ensure that 

all documentation for taxi drivers and vehicles are current and 
licenses are valid. During this quarter 37 letters were produced. 

 
2.5 Under the licensing points system a total of 72 points have been 

issued to 34 licence holders.  This is continuing to contribute to 
improvements in drivers and proprietors behaviour. 

 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’. 

 
Background Papers 
Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ – Data. 
 
Contact Member: Councillor Malcolm Alexander – Executive Member 

for Community Safety and Environment. 
malcolm.alexander@eastherts.gov.uk  

 

Page 62



 
  

Contact Officer: Brian Simmonds – Head of Community Safety and 
Health Services, Extn: 1498. 

 brian.simmonds@eastherts.gov.uk 
 
Report Author: Robin Clark – Licensing     

  Enforcement Manager, Extn: 1644.  
  robin.clark@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 

 
IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS: 

 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly 
those who are vulnerable. 
 

Consultation: For information only, and no partner or external 
consultation has taken place. 

Legal: No issues identified by report author or contact 
officer 

Financial: No issues identified by report author or contact 
officer  

Human 
Resource: 

No issues identified by report author or contact 
officer 

Risk 
Management: 

No issues identified by report author or contact 
officer 

Health and 
wellbeing – 
issues and 
impacts: 
 

No issues identified by report author or contact 
officer 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 
 
Q4 2014 – 01 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

Premises Licence Totals 

New  3 

Variation 0 

Minor Variation 4 

Transfer of premises licence 1 

Change of designated premises supervisor 15 

Change of name and/or address 1 

Cancelled/surrendered 8 

Suspended 6 

Other (Amendments, Renewal Fees) 15 

 

Club Premises Certificates Totals 

New  0 

Variation 1 

Minor Variation 0 

Transfer of premises licence 0 

Change of designated premises supervisor 14 

Change of name and/or address 6 

Cancelled/surrendered 0 

Suspended 0 

  

 

Personal Alcohol Licences Totals 

New  18 

Amendments (change of address etc) 7 

  

 

Temporary Event Notices Totals 

TENs received 210 

TENs withdrawn by premises user 5 

Amended by premises user 3 

Objections (Police or Environmental Health) 0 

  

 

GAMBLING ACT 2005 
 

Club Machine Permits 1 

Small Society Lotteries – New and Renewal 26 

Other (fast track, amendment to permit etc) 0 

Betting Premises Licence 0 

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit 0 

Notification of Gaming Machines 1 

  

 
 

Page 67



 
  

TAXIS 
 

New Dual Drivers 1 

Renewed Dual Drivers 80 

Other (amendment to existing driver records etc) 5 

  

New Private Hire Drivers 7 

Renewed Private Hire Drivers 12 

Cancelled/Surrendered/Lapsed 2 

Other (amendment to existing driver records etc) 0 

 

New Private Hire Operators 1 

Renewed Private Hire Operators 8 

Cancelled/Surrendered/Lapsed 0 

Other (amendment, reissue of documents etc) 1 

 

New Hackney Carriage Vehicles 3 

Renewed Hackney Carriage Vehicles 62 

Cancelled/Surrendered 1 

Change of vehicle 14 

Other (amendment, reissue of plate etc) 6 

 

New Private Hire Vehicles 4 

Renewed Private Hire Vehicles 12 

Cancelled/Surrendered/Lapsed 2 

Change of vehicle 3 

Other (amendment, reissue of plate etc) 1 

 
TOTAL NUMBERS OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS  

BETWEEN 01 JULY 2014 and 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 

Premises Licences 2 

 
TOTAL NUMBERS OF LICENCES AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2014     

Premises Licences 506 

Club Premises Certificates 39 

Personal Licences 1536 

Dual Driver 293 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles 259 

Private Hire Drivers 55 

Private Hire Vehicles 49 

Private Hire Operators 27 

 

Page 68



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2015 
 
REPORT BY EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY SAFETY AND 
ENVIRONMENT   
 

 ATTENDANCE AT LICENSING SUB–COMMITTEE 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED: All. 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report: 
 

• Members have asked for details of attendances at Licensing 
Sub-Committees including Members attending as observers.  
This was in order to show work was being shared equally.  
These are detailed in Essential Reference Paper ‘B’. 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE: that 

 

(A) The report be received. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 Members of Licensing Sub–Committees are drawn from the 

Council’s Licensing Committee.  These Members are required to 
complete appropriate training and attend meetings before serving 
on Licensing Sub–Committees. 

 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 The tables in Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ give details of 

attendances at Licensing Sub–Committee during the current civic 
year. 

 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘A’.   

 
Background Papers 
Licensing Sub–Committee minutes. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 69



 
  

Contact Member: Councillor M Alexander, Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member for Community Safety and 
Environment. malcolm.alexander@eastherts.gov.uk  

 
Contact Officer: Jeff Hughes, Head of Democratic and Legal Support 

Services, Extn: 2170. jeff.hughes@eastherts.gov.uk  
 
Report Author: Peter Mannings, Democratic Services Officer, 

  Extn: 2174. peter.mannings@eastherts.gov.uk 

Page 70



 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 

 

IMPLICATIONS/CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 

appropriate): 

People 
This priority focuses on enhancing the quality of life, 
health and wellbeing, particularly for those who are 
vulnerable, and delivering strong services  
 
Place 
This priority focuses on sustainability, the built 
environment and ensuring our towns and villages are 
safe and clean. 
 
Prosperity 
This priority focuses on safeguarding and enhancing our 
unique mix of rural and urban communities, promoting 
sustainable, economic opportunities and delivering cost 
effective services. 
 

Consultation: None. 
 

Legal: The Council is required to ensure that licensing matters 
are dealt with by suitably qualified Members in an 
impartial manner. 
 

Financial: None. 
 

Human 
Resource: 

None. 

Risk 
Management: 

The Council’s reputation could be at risk if licensing 
matters are not dealt with in a correct manner. 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Issues 

None. 

 
 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 
 
**Training and attendance needed (training is consider to be essential 
before Members are selected for a Licensing Sub–Committee hearing). 
* Attendance needed at Licensing Sub–Committee to gain experience 
as an observer (this is considered to be a preferred prerequisite before 
Members are selected for a Licensing Sub–Committee hearing). 

 

Licensing Committee Members attending as Members of Sub–Committee 

Members Total From 14 May 2014   

Ashley W          

Ballam P 1 03/10        

Bedford  E 

 
2 12/09 12/02       

 

Beeching R 2 14/10 12/02       

Buckmaster E 4 03/10 12/02 20/03      

Cheswright R 1 30/07        

Cutting G 1 12/09        

Crofton K 1         

Hone D 3 16/06 14/10 20/03      

Jones J 5 16/06 04/07 30/07 03/10 23/01    

McMullen M 4 04/07 11/07 23/01      

Ruffles P 3 30/07 14/10 23/01      

Taylor J 3 04/07 11/07 20/03      

Warman A 2 16/06 12/09       

Wrangles B          

 

Andrews D          

Newman M          

Warnell K          

 
  

Page 73



  

Licensing Committee Members attending as Observer 

Members Total From 14 May 2014 

Ashley W          

Ballam P 3 16/06 04/07 23/01      

Bedford E          

Beeching R 3 16/06 30/07 23/01      

Buckmaster E           

Cheswright R          

Cutting G 1 30/07        

Crofton K          

D Hone          

Jones J 1 12/02        

McMullen M 1 30/07        

Ruffles P 4 16/06 04/07 12/09 03/10     

Taylor J          

Warman A          

Wrangles B          

 

Substitutes:  

Andrews D 2 04/07 30/07       

Newman M          

Warnell K          

 
 

Page 74


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Sub-Committee - 23 January and 12 February 2015
	Minutes - 12 February 2015.doc

	6 Draft Revised Statement of Licensing Policy
	Draft Revised Statement of Licensing Policy - ERPA (implications)
	Draft Revised Statement of Licensing Policy - ERPB (policy document)

	7 Consideration of Public Fundraising Associations (PFRA) Response to Suggested Amendments to Draft Site Management Agreement
	Public Fundraising Regulartory Association - ERPA (implications)
	Public Fundraising Regulatory Association - ERPB (draft SMA amended)_opt

	8 Licensing Activity Œ Quarter 4 of 2014
	Licensing Activity Quarter 4 (October - December 2014) - ERPA (implications)
	Licensing Activity Quarter 4 (October - December 2014) - ERPB (Q4 data)

	9 Attendance at Licensing Sub-Committee
	Attendance at Licensing Sub-Committee - ERPA (implications)
	Attendance at Licensing Sub-Committee - ERPB (Attendance)


